
MINUTES

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Regular Board Meeting
June 28, 2010, 8:30 a.m.

Commissioners’ Conference Room 
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA

Present: Chairman James Beaver
Commissioner Max E. Benitz, Jr. 
County Administrator David Sparks  
Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie

Absent: Commissioner Leo Bowman (excused)

Benton  County  Employees  Present  During  All  or  a  Portion  of  the  Meeting:  Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Community Development Coordinator; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Sheriff Larry Taylor, Steve Becken, 
Malcolm  Bowie,  and  Sue  Schuetze,  Public  Works;  Planning  Manager  Mike  Shuttleworth; 
Human Services Administrator Ed Thornbrugh; Erhiza Rivera, Treasurer’s Office; DPA Ryan 
Brown;  Treasurer  Duane  Davidson;  Bryan  Perry,  Safety  Coordinator;  Van  Petty,  Auditor’s 
Office; Clark Posey, Planning; Patty Yayne, Assessor’s Office.  

Workshop Agenda

Animal Control Project

Sheriff  Taylor  said that  after  January 1 the City of West Richland would no longer have an 
animal control facility, or the funds or means to build a new facility.  Sheriff Taylor said West 
Richland needed about 10 kennels (they also deal with cats) and he was asking for authorization 
to begin a comprehensive study to look at a partnership with W. Richland to consolidate into one 
facility.   He said with the current design he could increase the capacity and kennels without 
changing the design and he already had volunteers in place to help run the program.  

Commissioner Benitz said the County had been wrestling with this subject for many years and 
how to  address  the  rural  Benton  County  residents.   He said the  County asked the  cities  to 
participate in the construction and ongoing operation and maintenance costs and they declined. 
Additionally,  he  said  the  Board  was  very  clear  on  “no  cats”  in  developing  the  ordinance. 
Commissioner Benitz said he wanted to see Benton County’s ordinance adopted for stray and 
abandoned dogs, get the facility up and running, and then look at other agreements with cities 
(maybe Prosser).  

Sheriff Taylor said he was not advocating the Benton County ordinance be changed.  He said 
that  once  they were up and running,  it  could be  changed if  they wanted.   He said that  W. 
Richland only had 1 to 2 cats and it would have to be at a different location or possibly in a 

- 1 -



corner.  He said that Prosser already contracted with Grandview so they were not in need of a 
facility.  Additionally, he said he was aware of the problems with the cities, but the County had a 
moral and ethical obligation to help out citizens in W. Richland because they were in need of a 
service as a municipality within Benton County.  

David Sparks said they were looking for the Board’s blessing to explore this option, but they 
were not looking to make a decision or sign a contract today.  

Chairman Beaver said the Board had made a decision to be in the animal control business and it 
would always look at contracts and services as a way to be more efficient and keep costs down 
and be more successful.  He said once they had a proposal, they could bring it to the Board.  

Rivershore Master Plan

Adam Fyall said he had been working with Tri-Cities Visitor & Convention regarding a new 
Rivershore Master Plan.  He said that Benton County’s share would be approximately $3,500 
and it was currently out to all parties to see if they were interested in participating.  

Both Commissioners Benitz and Beaver said they would support the project.  

Cancellation of Meeting

The Board cancelled the meeting of July 6, 2010. 

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:00 a.m. 

Approval of Minutes

The Minutes of June 21, 2010 were approved.  

Consent Agenda

MOTION:  Commissioner Benitz moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “u”. 
Chairman Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following:

Assessor
a. Personal Services Contract w/Automatic Funds Transfer Services

Auditor
b. Letter to Washington State Auditor’s Office

Commissioners
c. Contract with Washington State Military Department for E-911
d. UIC Stormwater Well Registration Form w/Department of Ecology

Facilities                            
e. Bid Award for Janitorial Services 

Fairgrounds
f. CPM Development Corporation Lease Amendment

- 2 -



Human Services
g. Adoption of Provider Network Business Plan 

Juvenile
h. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 172
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 173
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 174
l. Pasco School District Contract for Chiawana High School Probation Liaison
m. Pasco School District Contract for Pasco High School Probation Liaison
n. Grant Application, Office of Juvenile Justice Programs

Office of Public Defense
o. Termination - Professional Services Contract w/B Bowe for Investigative Services

Public Works
p. Order and Agreement for Nonexclusive Franchise for PUD No. 1 of Klickitat County
q. Order and Agreement for Nonexclusive Franchise for Electric Lightwave, LLC
r. Order and Agreement for Nonexclusive Franchise for Oasis Water Corporation

Sheriff
s. Authorization to Purchase Miscellaneous Equipment from Larsen Firearms

Treasurer
t. Approval for Disbursements from the Historical Preservation Fund
u. Agreement for Banking Services w/KeyBank National Association

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:05 a.m. 

Continued Public Hearing – Hunts Plat

Sue Schuetze said the Petitioner had provided Public Works with the documentation required to 
complete granting an easement as required by the Fire Marshal.  Additionally,  the Petitioner 
hired a surveyor to establish a legal description for an easement to preserve the City of West 
Richland’s existing sewer main and submitted it to the County and it was approved by the City 
of West Richland.  Ms. Schuetze said the Public Works Department recommended the right of 
way be vacated, subject to the listed conditions.  

Testimony

The applicants spoke from the audience and said they supported the request.  

MOTION:  Commissioner Benitz moved to approve the right of way vacation subject to the 
following conditions:

1. That two ingress egress easements be recorded immediately following the recording 
of the Vacation Resolution;

2. That an easement be retained for the City of West Richland sewer main within the 
Resolution for Vacation and that it be recorded.  

Chairman Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.  

- 3 -



The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:20 a.m.

Badger Mountain Golf & Country Club – Planned Development Revision to PD 94-1

Mike Shuttleworth said this was a closed record hearing.  

Mr. Shuttleworth said the applicant submitted an application to remove 15.86 acres from the 
Badger Mountain Golf & Country Club Planned Development and the Planning Commission 
held  a  public  hearing  on  the  request.   He said  it  was  the  recommendation  of  the  Planning 
Commission and the Planning Department to grant the request.  

MOTION:  Commissioner Benitz moved to adopt the Planning Commission’s findings of fact 
and conclusions as their own and approve the request to remove 15.86 acres lying south of Reata 
Road  and  North  of  Interstate  82  and  East  of  the  Bermuda  Road/I-82  overpass  from  the 
boundaries of the Planned Development of Badger Mountain Golf and Country Club (PD 94-1) 
and that such request was subject to the following conditions: 

1. The applicant must comply with the all conditions for approval for the Badger 
Mountain Golf & Country Club Planned Development set forth in the Board’s 
January 24, 2001 decision attached to Resolution 01-037 and as modified by the 
Board of Commissioners.

2. No other changes are approved other than those considered with this request.  

Chairman Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.  

The Board briefly recessed until 9:30 a.m.

Preliminary Plat of Reata Place – SUB 10-01

Mike Shuttleworth  said this  was a closed record hearing and covered the land that  was just 
removed from PD 94-1.  He said that during the Planning Commission hearing, there was a lot of 
discussion about water and the irrigation district agreed to put up some money to increase the 
pumping  ability  for  the  irrigation  district.   He  said  the  Planning  Commission  voted  to 
recommend  approval  of  the  preliminary  plat  as  presented  with  conditions  and  the  Planning 
Department  recommended  the  Board  adopt  the  Planning  Commission’s  recommendation, 
findings and conclusions.  

MOTION:  Commissioner Benitz moved to adopt the Planning Commission’s recommendation, 
findings and conclusions as their own and approve the preliminary plat of Reata Place, SUB 10-
01 with conditions.  Chairman Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously. 

The Board briefly recessed until 9:40 a.m.  

- 4 -



Boundary Line Adjustment – Ordinance Amendment to Title 9

Mike Shuttleworth  said  this  was  a  public  meeting  and the  Board could  take  testimony if  it 
wanted.   He said  it  was  a  proposed ordinance  to  amend  Title  9  to  provide  procedures  and 
consistent  criteria  for  reviewing  and  approving  boundary  line  adjustments.   The  Planning 
Commission held a public hearing and recommended approval of the ordinance.  Additionally, 
Mr.  Shuttleworth  said  the  new  ordinance  required  that  a  licensed  surveyor  prepare  legal 
descriptions.   

MOTION:  Commissioner Benitz moved to approve the Planning Commission’s Findings of 
Fact  as  their  own  and  approve  the  resolution  adopting  the  ordinance  “Boundary  Line 
Adjustments”.  

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:50 a.m.  

Review of Benton County Code 6.08

DPA Ryan Brown submitted a memo regarding BCC Chapter 6.08.  He said that Steve Brown 
had raised the issue of applicability of BCC 6.08, an ordinance adopted in 1974.  He said the 
state statutes have evolved since then, but Benton County’s ordinance was frozen in time and 
Sheriff’s road deputies relied on state statute. He asked the Board if it wanted to maintain the 
current ordinance, repeal it, or amend it section by section.

Commissioner Benitz said he was in favor of repealing the ordinance.  

Chairman Beaver said if the operational standards were to follow the state statute, then he was in 
favor of repealing it.

Mr. Brown said the Board would need to have a public hearing on the issue and he would work 
with the Commissioners’ office to set that up.  

The board briefly recessed, reconvening at 10:05 am.  

Human Services Update

Ed  Thornbrugh  said  that  participation  on  the  advisory  boards  had  diminished  in  spite  of 
recruitment efforts and he proposed consolidating the advisory boards into a Human Services 
Board.  

Commissioner Benitz said he wanted the Boards to stay separate at this time and continue the 
recruitment efforts, maybe to be reviewed again at a later time.  Chairman Beaver asked what the 
other counties were doing and Mr. Thornbrugh said it was a combination of both.  

The Board agreed to have Human Services continue to recruit and report back in six months on 
the progress.  

- 5 -



Mr. Thornbrugh discussed the joint resolution authorizing the Director of Human Services to 
execute  certain  types  of contracts  and recommended the resolution be updated to  reflect  the 
current position.  The Board agreed.  

Mr.  Thornbrugh  briefly  discussed  his  written  report,  including  Developmental  Disabilities 
Services;  Mental  Health  Services;  Substance  Abuse;  Prevention  Services;  Housing;  and  IT 
Services.

Chairman Beaver asked about the status of the Canal Building.  Ed Thornbrugh said the RFQ’s 
closed  on  Friday,  they  received  12  responses,  and  he  would  review  them with  the  County 
administrators to select an A&E firm.  

Commissioner  Benitz  said he was in  agreement  with terminating  the Advocate  for Wellness 
contract and moving forward with a new contract. 

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 10:45 a.m.  

Unscheduled Visitors

Bi-County Budget Meeting 

Commissioner Benitz discussed the request to hold a bi-county budget meeting and said he was 
not in favor of moving forward before other budget meetings were held.  He said the County had 
a system in place for budget review and he wanted to send a letter to Superior Court stating the 
Board would be happy to sit down with them during the regular budget cycle.  

Chairman Beaver said there was a process that should be followed, unless there was something 
broken.  He said he was hearing there was not enough money, which was not new news.  He said 
he wanted to discuss the issues during the regular budget cycle and was agreeable to a letter to 
Superior Court and Franklin County.  

Claim for Damages

CC 09-21B: Received June 25, 2010 from Naathon-Ray Johnson

Vouchers

Check Date: 6/25/2010
Warrant #: 13080-13508
Taxes #: 01010610
Total all funds: $1,440,884.02

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office.

- 6 -



Resolutions

10.359 Personal Services Contract w/Automatic Funds Transfer Services
10.360 Contract with Washington State Military Department for E-911
10.361 UIC Stormwater Well Registration Form w/Department of Ecology
10.362 Bid Award for Janitorial Services 
10.363 CPM Development Corporation Lease Amendment
10.364 Adoption of Provider Network Business Plan 
10.365 Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171
10.366 Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 172
10.367 Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 173
10.368 Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 174
10.369 Pasco School District Contract for Chiawana High School Probation Liaison
10.370 Pasco School District Contract for Pasco High School Probation Liaison
10.371 Grant Application, Office of Juvenile Justice Programs
10.372 Termination-Professional Services Contract w/B Bowe for Investigative Services
10.373 Order  &  Agreement  for  Nonexclusive  Franchise  for  PUD No.  1  of  Klickitat 

County
10.374 Order and Agreement for Nonexclusive Franchise for Electric Lightwave, LLC
10.375 Order and Agreement for Nonexclusive Franchise for Oasis Water Corporation
10.376 Authorization to Purchase Miscellaneous Equipment from Larsen Firearms
10.377 Approval for Disbursements from the Historical Preservation Fund
10.378 Agreement for Banking Services w/KeyBank National Association
10.379 Approval to Remove 15.86 Acres from the Badger Mountain Golf and Country 

Club Planned Development File PD 94-1
10.380 Approval of SUB 10-01 – Preliminary Plat – Reata Place
10.381 Adoption of Ordinance 473 – Adding a New Chapter to BCC Title 9 – Boundary 

Line Adjustments

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 11:00 
a.m.  

_______________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of the Board Chairman

- 7 -


	Approval of Minutes
	Sheriff
	Treasurer
	Sue Schuetze said the Petitioner had provided Public Works with the documentation required to complete granting an easement as required by the Fire Marshal.  Additionally, the Petitioner hired a surveyor to establish a legal description for an easement to preserve the City of West Richland’s existing sewer main and submitted it to the County and it was approved by the City of West Richland.  Ms. Schuetze said the Public Works Department recommended the right of way be vacated, subject to the listed conditions.  


	Testimony
	Badger Mountain Golf & Country Club – Planned Development Revision to PD 94-1
	Preliminary Plat of Reata Place – SUB 10-01
	Boundary Line Adjustment – Ordinance Amendment to Title 9

	Review of Benton County Code 6.08
	Human Services Update
	Unscheduled Visitors
	Bi-County Budget Meeting 
	Vouchers



